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For reply please quote: SocPol/SL – TF/21/1826 – DOC/21/16810  

 
29 January 2021  
 
 
The Honourable Scott Morrison MP 
Prime Minister of Australia  
Parliament House 
PO Box 6022 
CANBERRA  ACT  2600 
 
 
Dear Prime Minister 
 
 
As our nation contends with new and highly infectious strains of COVID-19, we must continue 
to work in partnership to examine and consider every possible measure to keep people safe.  
 
Further to my previous letter of 22 January 2021 and our discussions on that date, I write 
regarding the Queensland Government’s ongoing consideration of the establishment of a 
regional non-hotel COVID-19 quarantine facility. 
 
It is our position that we need to ensure the future safety and security of our citizens.  
 
We consider that regional quarantine facilities, such as those proposed at Wellcamp and 
Central Queensland, could provide a safe and secure means of not only quarantining returning 
Australians, but also best protecting the Queensland community.  
 
A further advantage of a regional quarantine facility would be the ability to accommodate all 
staff onsite, drastically reducing the risk of a COVID-19 community outbreak, particularly 
from the highly infectious strains of the United Kingdom, South America or South Africa.  
 
Specifically, I enclose further information, commercial in confidence, regarding the Wellcamp 
and Central Queensland quarantine options.  
 
As you may be aware, this regional quarantine concept is consistent with the recommendation 
of the Halton Review for the Commonwealth to consider establishing a national facility for 
quarantine.  
 
While our current hotel quarantine arrangements in Queensland have worked well, we must 
be ready for any scenario, particularly given the havoc wreaked by new strains of COVID-19 
overseas.      
 
The Queensland Government is continuing its detailed assessment of the viability of identified 
options, including undertaking risk assessments and engagement with key stakeholders. 
Officials from the Queensland Department of the Premier and Cabinet (DPC) have also had 
several detailed and productive discussions with their counterparts in the Department of the 
Prime Minister and Cabinet (PM&C) on the matter.  
 
I am seeking your in-principle agreement on a number of measures that allow for a regional 
quarantine facility in Queensland to be viable, subject to adequate community consultation.     
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Central to the viability of a regional quarantine facility would be your agreement to help 
facilitate a number of international flights diverting to previously discussed regional locations.  
 
In addition, you may also wish to continue exploring Federal Government-facilitated flight 
arrivals of up to 200 passengers per week (400 passengers in total per week) arriving on a 
large aircraft, such as a Boeing 777, to bring Australians home to their families.  
 
In implementing a regional quarantine facility, a number of requirements are needed from the 
Civil Aviation Safety Agency (CASA) advice, including:  
 

 the safe capacity and capability at both Wellcamp and Rockhampton Airport to receive 
such flights  

 whether there is a need for a new air traffic control tower at Wellcamp  
 on ground capability (including from ABF, ADF and other Federal entities) to be 

established to facilitate these new flights at both proposed sites 
 whether additional resources would be required to support appropriate fire and 

emergency service capabilities at the airports. 
 
We also understand that the Federal Department of Infrastructure would be required to 
designate the airports as international airports, and that airport owner approval would be 
required.  
 
As you can appreciate, these are critical issues that must be settled before the viability of 
options can be fully ascertained.  
 
In addition, we are also seeking further information on what Federal Government support and 
resourcing, including financial contribution, will be made available at both the airport and the 
quarantine facility, including for: 
 

 processing of international arrivals  
 necessary capital works for essential service infrastructure 
 health and welfare services (for example, hospital/primary care services and other 

health/welfare supports) 
 facility operation (for example, health and security personnel, transport, catering, 

maintenance, ICT systems, financial administration/invoicing, data reporting, etc). 
 
As you would be aware, the Director-General of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet, 
Mr Dave Stewart, will be meeting with the Secretary of Prime Minister and Cabinet, 
Mr Philip Gaetjens, shortly to further discuss these issues so that we may continue to progress 
the proposals.    
 
The Queensland Government looks forward to your in-principle agreement on these important 
matters.   
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
ANNASTACIA PALASZCZUK MP 
PREMIER OF QUEENSLAND 
MINISTER FOR TRADE 
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